































































































































































































































































































































































































Attorney General

LYN N AUG 28 2025
JACKSON

ATTORNEYS

110 N, Minnesota Ave., Suite 400 909 Saint Joseph Street, Suite 800 10966 SD Highway 34
Sioux Falls, SD 57104 TRapid City, SD 57701 Belle Fourche, SD 57717
Phone (605) 832-5999 - Fax (605) 832-4249 Phone (605) 342-2692 - Fax (805) 342-5185 Phone (605) 722-9000 - Fax (605) 722-8001

REPLY TO: Rapid City Office
From the offices of Ty M. Daly
e-mail address: tdaly@lynnjackson.com

August 22, 2025

VIA U.S. MAIL: B@VMJ*‘ -

Attorney General's Office
1302 E. Highway 14, #1
Pierre, SD 57501

Re:  Green Valley Sanitary District/ General Advice - Our File No. 7501.002
Open Meetings Complaint 2024-10

Dear Mr. Blair:

I have enclosed the Response of Green Valley Sanitary District in the matter of Open Meetings
Complaint 2025-04. I have referenced the page numbers from the “materials” you provided as
the “Record” in the Response. Please advise if this should be done a different way. By copy of
this letter, I am mailing copies to Senior Deputy State’s Attorney Tyler Sobczak and Mr. Steven
Myers. Please let me know when the Commission will be considering this matter, Thank you.

Sincerely,

Lynn, J ackson,, Shultz & Lebrun, P.C.

@Daly

TMD:krk
Encl.

cc:  Senior Deputy State’s Attorney Tyler Sobczak via U.S. Mail
Mr. Steven Myers via U.S. Mail
GVSD Board of Trustees via email

Lynn, Jackson, Shultz & Lebrun, P.C.



SOUTH DAKOTA OPEN MEETINGS COMMISSION
IN THE MATTER OF OPEN MEETINGS COMPLAINT 2025-04,
GREEN VALLEY SANITARY DISTRICT — PENNINGTON COUNTY

RESPONSE OF GREEN VALLEY SANITARY DISTRICT

Green Valley Sanitary District Board of Trustees, through its undersigned counsel,
makes its response to the complaint of Mr. Steven Myers (“Complaint™) presented by the
Pennington County State’s Attorney.

INTRODUCTION

The Pennington County State’s Attorney, based upon the complaint filed by Steven
Myers, asks this Commission to consider (1) whether the motion made by the Green Valley
Sanitary District (“GVSD”) Board of Trustees to go into executive session violated SDCL
§ 1-25-1 (“Issue 1), and (2) whether the Board of Trustees violated SDCL § 1-25-11 when
it directed Complaint to quit recording the meeting (“Issue 2”). A complete review of the
relevant actions and documents and the applicable statutes confirms that no violation of the
South Dakota Open Mectings Law has occurred, which is the limited scope of the authority
of this Commission.

STATEMENT OF MATERIAL FACTS

The GVSD Board of Trustees at the time relevant to this matter were Scott Mohr
(President), Valerie Lewton (Treasurer), and Lorretta Jangula (Secretary).

Regarding Issue 1, while the Trustees do not recall citing a specific state law to enter into
executive session and close the official meeting to the public, the Open Meetings
Complaint 2025-04 materials compiled by Assistant Attorney General Steven R. Blair
(“Record”) support that they did make a motion which stated the specific reasoning for
doing so. See Record, Pg. 19 and 21. The Complainant notes in his complaint
(“Complaint™) that the “board and their attorney went into executive session to discuss a
complaint by Steve Myers...”. See Complaint (pg. 9 of Record). As such, the Board of
Trustees’ motion gave the Complainant and the public clear notice of the Board’s purpose
and justification for entering into executive session.

Regarding Issue 2, as a result of the Complainant’s video recording of the May 8, 2024
meeting a distraction or disruption of the meeting occurred. It also potentially made certain
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other members of the public in attendance uncomfortable. Whether the recording itself or
the disagreement about the recording was the cause of the distraction or disruption remains
unclear. In addition, the Trustees only directed the Complainant to quit recording because
they were uncertain of the applicable South Dakota law. See Record, Pg. 30. In fact, Mohr
testified that the purpose of stopping the meeting was to determine whether recording was
permitted, not simply to prevent Complainant from recording. See Id. Whether a violation
occutred or not, it is important to note that Mohr’s intention was essentially to pause the
meeting until the Board of Trustees could decide how to proceed, not to prohibit
Complainant from recording indefinitely. As evidence of that, Mohr testified that once the
Trustees discovered their actions could be perceived to have violated SDCL § 1-25-11, the
Trustees apologized for the perception the action created and have since permitted
Complainant to record meetings. Jd. Whether their actions violated SDCL § 1-25-11 or not,
they acted in good faith as their intentions were to avoid a violation of law, and the
distraction and the disruption the video recording caused or could cause. The Board of
Trustees then promptly took action to address the potential issue and ensure similar
misunderstandings would not occur.

LEGAL ISSUES

1. The GVSD Board of Trustees did not violate SDCL § 1-25-1 by making a
motion to go into executive session without citing specific law to close the
official meeting to the public.

The Supreme Court suceinctly reiterated its canons of statutory interpretation in
Martinmaas. It stated: ‘

Questions of law such as statutory interpretation are reviewed by the Court de
novo.... The purpose of statutory construction is to discover the true intention of the law
which is to be ascertained primarily from the language expressed in the statute. The
intent of a statute is determined from what the legislature said, rather than what the
courts think it should have said, and the court must confine itself to the language used.
Words and phrases in a statute must be given their plain meaning and effect. When the
language in a statute is clear, certain and unambiguous, there is no reason for
construction, and the Court's only function is to declare the meaning of the statute as
clearly expressed. Since statutes must be construed according to their intent, the intent
must be determined from the statute as a whole, as well as enactments relating to the
same subject. But, in construing statutes together it is presumed that the legislature did
not intend an absurd or unreasonable result. When the question is which of two
enactments the legislature intended to apply to a particular situation, terms of a statute
relating to a particular subject will prevail over the general terms of another statute.



Martinmaas v. Engelmann, 2000 S.D. 85, § 49, 612 N.W.2d 600, 611 (citing Moss V.
Guttormson, 1996 SD 76, § 10, 551 N.W.2d 14, 17).

While SDCL § 1-25-1 states, “An official meeting of a public body is open to the public
unless a specific law is cited by the public body to close the official meeting to the public”,
as the Pennington County State’s Attorney Investigator notes, SDCL § 1-25-2, the statute
specific to executive or closed meetings, has no similar requirement. See Record, Pg, 29-
30. SDCL § 1-25-2 simply provides the permissible purposes of executive or closed
meetings, one being “consulting with legal counsel... about proposed or pending
litigation...” and what the a public body must do to enter into executive session. It states,
“An executive or closed meeting must be held only upon a majority vote of the members
of the public body present and voting, and discussion during the closed meeting is restricted
to the purpose specified in the closure motion.” SDCL § 1-25-2. Again, SDCL § 1-25-2
articulates no such requirement to cite a specific law. The contradiction between SDCL §
1-25-1 and § 1-25-2 creates an ambiguity that should be construed in favor of SDCL § 1-
25-2, as it is the statute that specifically discusses the reasons that a public body can enter
into executive session and the actions a public body must take to properly do so. All
evidence suggests that the GVSD Board of Trustees met the requirements of SDCL § 1-
25-2 by passing the closure motion by majority vote, expressing a permissible purpose for
entering into executive session in the closure motion (discussing Complainant’s
Complaint) and limiting their discussion to that permissible purpose. Whether the GVSD
Board of Trustees complied with SDCL § 1-25-1 becomes immaterial, because the Board
complied with SDCL § 1-25-2, the more specific (and applicable) statute, and SDCL ch.
1-25 as a whole. As such, it should not be deemed an Open Meetings Violation.

Even if SDCL § 1-25-1 controls, and a specific law must be cited by the public body to
close the official meeting to the public, the GVSD Board of Trustees’ motion, at the least,
substantially complied with that requirement. The open meetings statutes, SDCL ch. 1-25,
are designed to cnsure transparency by requiring public bodies to state a valid legal reason
before entering executive session, not to impose a rigid, technical recitation of statute
citations. Here, the GVSD Board of Trustees expressly stated it was entering executive
session to discuss proposed or pending litigation (Complainant’s Complaint) with its legal
counsel—one of the permissible purposes under SDCL § 1-25-2(3). This statement
identified the legal basis for closure and gave the public the transparency the law intends.

Reading SDCL §§ 1-25-1 and 1-25-2 together, the requirement to “cite a specific law”
should be considered satisfied when the public body articulates a reason that directly
matches a statutory exception, even if the section number itself is not recited. The law
should not require form over substance. In fact, in its “Guide to South Dakota’s Open
Meetings Laws (Revised 2023) (“Guide”), the South Dakota Attorney General’s Office
itself notes that “best practice to avoid public confusion would be that public bodies explain



the reason for going into executive session.” See Guide, Pg. 3. By making a motion to enter
into executive session for the reason of discussing Complainant’s Complaint, it sought to
avoid public confusion in a way that a simple statutory citation could not do.

Read without SDCL § 1-25-2, all SDCL § 1-25-1 requires is that the public body cite a
“specific law”. It does not even state that it must be an applicable law. Arguably, the public
body could cite a statute from SDCL 47-34A, and technically meet the requirement of
SDCL § 1-25-1, but violate the spirit of SDCL ch. 1-25 as a whole. So, under this
interpretation, the GVSD Board of Trustees failure to cite a specific state law may have
technically violated SDCL § 1-25-1, but their actions met the spirit of SDCL ch. 1-25 by
notifying the public of the permissible reason they were entering into executive session.
Simply put, SDCL § 1-25-1"s requirement to cite a “specific law” is an inconsequential and
unnecessary procedural step, and the valid purpose required by SDCL § 1-25-2 is what
matters. It would be unreasonable for the Board of Trustees to be deemed to have violated
the SDCL ch. 1-25 when it performed the Guide’s Best Practice, but missed a procedural
technicality. Therefore, no Open Meeting Violation occurred.

Even assuming that the GVSD Board of Trustees’ failure to recnte the exact statutory
section number constituted a technical violation of § 1-25-1, any such error was harmless.
The stated reason, consultation with legal counsel regarding proposed or pending litigation,
matches the enumerated purpose in § 1-25-2(3), and there is no evidence the executive
session strayed beyond that subject. The public therefore received the essential information
the statute is intended to convey: why the meeting was being closed and that it was for a
lawful reason. In fact, the public received more information than it would have ifthe GVSD
Board of Trustees simply cited SDCL § 1-25-2(3) without further context. As previously
described above, according to the Guide, the GVSD Board of Trustees actually followed
“best practice”. See Guide, Pg. 3. GVSD should not be penalized for a procedural defect
that did not impair transparency or prejudice the public in any way. Here, the substance of
the SDCL ch. 1-25 was fully satisfied, and no harm resulted from the absence of a specific
statutory citation.

In sum, under the rules of statutory interpretation, SDCL ch. 1-25 does not require a
public body to cite a specific law to enter into executive session. Even if'it does, the GVSD
Board of Trustees substantially complied with the letter of the open meetings statutes, and
fully complied with their spirit. It announced a clear, lawful reason for entering executive
session that falls squarely within § 1-25-2(3), thereby providing the public with the
transparency the law is designed to ensure. Whether viewed through a strict textual lens, a
substantial compliance approach, or a harmless error analysis, no Open Meetings Violation
occurred.



2. The applicable Member(s) of the GVSD Board of Trustees did not violate
SDCL § 1-25-11 when the they directed the Complainant to quit recording
the meeting.

SDCL § 1-25-11 allows the public to record an official meeting so long as the recording
is reasonable, obvious, and not disruptive. In this instance, the Board’s directive to the
Complainant to quit recording was based on a reasonable and legitimate concern that the
Complainant’s recording method could disrupt the orderly conduct of the meeting. The
action was not intended to prevent public access or conceal information, but to ensure the
meeting could proceed efficiently and without interference and to avoid the potential of
other members of the public being recorded without their consent. The Board acted
reasonably, in good faith, and in accordance with its responsibility to maintain order during
official proceedings. The mere fact no one said anything for the first five minutes the
Complainant was recording should not be deemed determinative that no disruption or
distraction occurred or reasonably could have occurred. When Complainant’s recording
was discovered, disruption and distraction of the meeting ensued.

Even if the Complainant’s recording did not, in fact, cause any disruption, the Board’s
action, while mistaken, was reasonable and taken in good faith. The directive was intended
to avoid potential distraction or interference with the meeting and to protect members of
the public who may not have wished to be recorded. The Board acted out of a reasonable
concern for maintaining the orderly conduct of the meeting, not to public prevent
transparency or access. Furthermore, the Board never intended to prohibit or prevent
Complainant from recording indefinitely. Its purpose was to pause the meeting, evaluate
the law and facts, and make an informed decision on how to move forward. Evidencing
this is that fact that the Board recognized the public perception that its action could have
been construed to be mistaken under SDCL § 1-25-11. Upon this realization, the Board
promptly took steps to ensure that future meetings fully comply with this statute, and
apologized for the perception it created. This demonstrates the Board’s commitment to
acting reasonably and in good faith and maintaining full compliance with South Dakota
open meetings laws.

CONCLUSION

Regarding Issue 1, The GVSD Board of Trustees made a formal motion to enter into
executive session for the purpose of discussing legal issues relating to complaints made by
Complainant, which satisfies SDCL ch. 1-25. Even if a technical violation did occur, the
GVSD Board of Trustees actions substantially complied with the SDCL ch. 1-25, fully
complied with the spirt of that statute, and resulted in no prejudice to the public.

Regarding Issue 2, the Complainant’s recording of the meeting was or could have
disruptive, which warrants the Trustees’ direction to Complainant to quit recording under



SDCL ch. 1-25. Even if the Trustee’s direction was mistaken and no disruption occurred,
under SDCL ch. 1-25 their actions were taken in good faith and were reasonable under the
circumstances. In addition, the GVSD Board of Trustees took prompt action thereafter in

an effort to limit any harm done, and to avoid future misunderstandings or the perception
of a violation of SDCL ch. 1-25.

As a result, no violation of the South Dakota Open Meetings Laws has occurred.

Dated: August 22, 2025.

LYNN, JACKSON, SHULTZ & LLEBRUN, P.C.

By:ﬁm%

fy M. Daly

Attorneys for Greekh-¥alley Sanitary
District

909 St. Joseph Street, Suite 800
Rapid City, SD 57701

(605) 342-2592




From: Katz, Beverly

To: Neyhart, Melissa
Subject: FW: [EXT] GVSD Green Valley Open Meetings Complaint 2025-4
Date: Thursday, September 11, 2025 3:17:19 PM

Melissa, please make this part of the file. Beverly

From: Katz, Beverly

Sent: Thursday, September 11, 2025 3:17 PM

To: march18th@rap.midco.net; tdaly@lynnjackson.com

Cc: tyler.sobczak@pennco.org; steve.neavill@pennco.org

Subject: RE: [EXT] GVSD Green Valley Open Meetings Complaint 2025-4

Steve, Thanks for the email and its receipt is acknowledged. Beverly Katz

From: march18th@rap.midco.net <march18th@rap.midco.net>

Sent: Thursday, September 11, 2025 3:09 PM

To: Katz, Beverly <Beverly. Katz@state.sd.us>; tdaly@lynnjackson.com
Cc: tyler.sobczak@pennco.org; steve.neavill@pennco.org

Subject: RE: [EXT] GVSD Green Valley Open Meetings Complaint 2025-4

Beverly,

| understand your position, but please know that there is no Green Valley Sanitary Board.
They all resigned last night. If a new board is established, they will be broke. The
resolution for the opt-out of the tax limitations was not published. If a board is
established, and if they remember to do the opt-out correctly, they will have noincome
for the day-to-day expenses until April of 2027. | do not wish to put anymore burden on
them.

Steve Myers

From: Katz, Beverly <Beverly.Katz@state sd.us>

Sent: Thursday, September 11, 2025 9:54 AM

To: tdaly@lynnjackson.com

Cc: march18th@rap.midco.net; tvler.sobczak@pennco.org; steve.neavill@pennco.org
Subject: FW: GVSD Green Valley Open Meetings Complaint 2025-4

Good morning Mr. Daly,
Just keeping you in the loop.

Mr. Myers sent an email this morning, and | am now including you. Please see below.



| believe since the State’s Attorney referred this Complaint to the Open Meetings
Commission, it will remain on the agenda.

We are in the process of setting this matter for a November 2025 meeting date and will
advise everyone of the scheduled meeting date once set.

Thanks,
Beverly Katz — Assistant Attorney General

From: Katz, Beverly
Sent: Thursday, September 11, 2025 8:22 AM
To: march18th@rap.midco.net

Cc: Steve Neavill <steve.neavill@pennco.org>; Tyler Sobczak <tyler.sobczak@pennco.gov>
Subject: RE: [EXT] GVSD

Thank you for your email. Acknowledged.

Beverly J. Katz

Assistant Attorney General

1D, MBA, CPA

Phone (605) 773-3215

Email beverly katz@state sd.us

1302 East Hwy 1888, Ste. 1, Pierre, 50 57501

Confidentiality Notice

This message is being sent by or on behalf of the South Dakota Attorney General’s Office. It is intended
exclusively for the individual or entity to which it is addressed. This communication may contain information
that is proprietary, attorney-client privileged, confidential, or otherwise legally exempt from disclosure. If vou are
not the named addressee, vou are not authorized to read, print, copy or disseminate this message or any part of
it. If vou have received this message in error, please notify the sender immediatelyv by telephone at (605) 773
3215 or reply by email, and delete all copies of the message.

From: march18th@rap.midco.net <march18th@rap.midco.net>

Sent: Thursday, September 11, 2025 7:02 AM

To: Katz, Beverly <Beverly. Katz@state.sd.us>

Cc: Steve Neavill <steve.neavill@pennco.org>; Tyler Sobczak <tyler.sobczak@pennco.gov>
Subject: [EXT] GVSD

Good morning,



At last night’s Green Valley Sanitary District meeting, the whole board resigned. All
three, president Scott Mohr, vice president/treasure Val Lewton and Secretary Lorretta
Janjula. There is no need to continue with my complaint.

Steve Myers



From: Katz, Beverly

To: Neyhart, Melissa

Subject: FW: [EXT]

Date: Monday, September 22, 2025 10:17:26 AM
Attachments: September 11- 2025 For or Against.pdf

2025 Commissioners.docx

Scotts Flood Plain Development Permit.pdf
commissioners.docx

System Users.pdf

6-11-2025 certify.m4a

From: march18th@rap.midco.net <march18th@rap.midco.net>
Sent: Monday, September 22, 2025 9:28 AM

To: Olson, Russ (DLA) <Russ.Olson@state.sd.us>

Cc: Katz, Beverly <Beverly.Katz@state.sd.us>

Subject: FW: [EXT]

Good morning,

Justin case you haven’t seen this.
Thankyou,

Steve Myers

From: march18th@rap.midco.net <march18th@rap.midco.net>

Sent: Thursday, September 18, 2025 7:56 AM

To: 'tyler.sobczak@pennco.org' <tyler.sobczak@pennco.org>

Cc: Steve Neavill (steve.neavill@pennco.org) <steve.neavill@pennco.org>
Subject:

Tyler,

Attached are the ‘Not in Favor’ and ‘In Favor’ lists. By my count there are 69 family’s that
are not in favor of the proposed sewer project. It’s a good guess that many of these
family were at the February 27, 2024, and May 29, 2024, meetings. Both of those
meetings had about the same amount of people with nearly the same number of hands
raised when | called for a vote. One of our residents is working on a list that will tell us
how many properties out here are rentals, and how many of those are out-of-state
owners. It’s our thought that renters won’t come to these meetings and won’t forward
the meeting notices to the owner.

Also attached is the letter | sent to the commissioners yesterday and Scott’s Flood Plain
Development Permit.

In the letter | forgot to add that Scott was appointed President and Val was appointed
Vice president/Treasure at the April 10, 2024, meeting.

Attached is the System User’s pdf. The System Users Agreement is from page 11 of the
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Commissioners,

More must know information.

On December 13, 2021, Scott Mohr purchased 5846 Greenwood Lane. That property includes 7 lots. All in zone AE. Only 1 has an existing home on it.

In August of 2023 the GVSD board began talks about a pressurized sewer system, at the suggestion of GVSD resident Scott Mohr.

On November 8, 2023, Scott Morh accepted the position of Member at Large on the Green Valley Sanitary District (GVSD) board. 

At the December 13, 2023, meeting Scott Mohr accepted the position of Vice President on the GVSD board.

Scott Mohr has a Flood Plain Development Permit # COFDP24-0006. The permit is for “concrete columns only”. Dated 2/19/2024.

The permit engineer is Interstate Engineering.

The engineer gives the Existing Ground Elevation as 3031.2 – 3032.4.

There are three lots between Scott’s property and mine. Scott is to the south. My Fisk Engineering survey has my highest point at 3032. That ground saw no water in both 2015 and 2019, when I saw over 2’ of water on 5846 Greenwood Lane. My neighbor directly to the south, with one property between her and Scott’ farther to the south, has an elevation on the southern end of her property of 3028.6. 

I know that Scott can not get a permit for a septic tank and drain field on those 7 lots. Pressurized sewer is his only option. 

I’m wondering—Is the engineering report falsified? Is there a conflict of interest when Scott uses the same engineering company as GVSD? Most importantly, Scott kept pushing for this pressurized sewer when the vast majority didn’t want or need it. Was this because the only way for him to develop those 7 lots is with a pressurized sewer system?

Steve Myers    9-17-2025
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lPENNmGTON FLOODPLAIN DEVELOPMENT PERMIT APPLICATION / AS-BUILT
COUNTY
45 77
TaxiD# 149k TG0 =2 For Internal Use Only Permit# . _ -y
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Department will begin processing. Due to the
the Permit revie

** INCOM
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w process moy take o minimum
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PLETE APPLICATIONS WILL NOT BE ACCEPTED **

[ certify that all information contain
this application is true and accurate
and local lows and regulations in pe
will meet all applicable requirements

of

applicable; and, | FURTHER UNDERSTAND THAT SUBMITTAL OF THIS
APPROVED PERMIT,
Cody L. Galloway 02/19/2024 &\\\
Printed name of B,eg!sxcrcd.ﬁmfessmrm} Engineer or Architect / Date \\1'5’,\:':‘ 0?'
/ / A § Q‘fi, /
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ed Professional Engineer or Architect / Date = t,; “!/ -
X
XN
< .
' %,
NOTE 4;»,{;
L. Nowork may start until a FDP is approved. o s

2. The ¥DP may be revoked by way ofa &

ed within this application form and an
to the best of my knowiedge; 1 certify
rforming the work for which this pe

Crdinance #17 (Penningto

fth the required items listed below before the Planning
for a Floodplain Development Permit (FDP),
e plan your construction project accordingly.
nd needs to be resubmitted.

y other information provided by me in relation to
ify that | will comply with olf applicabie Federdl, State,
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3. Ifrevoked, all work m ust cease until a new FDP and a START WORK ORDER are re-issued.
LANDOWNER Name: Scott Mohr Engineer or Architect Name: Cody L. @all oway
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DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSED WORK

Describe the work bein g done and indicated ¢l
Floodplain Prevention Permit:

Residential Non
X__New Construction New
Addition/Improvements _Add

_X__Other (explain): FOIZ (/U’LU

early on maps/site plans which structure/project/etc is being
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REQUIRED INFORMATION (An application will not be accepted without this information ) :

i q _, I " 5 . e
I The proposed development is located in© Zone s 100-Year Flood Fringe

A

2. Panel# 49 é Uil Effective Date

3. Base Flood Elevation Source:
Existing Ground Elev, Source: R
Finish Eley, - 931. * Source:

POST CONSTRUCTION / AS-BUILT
TO BE COMPLETED AFTER CONSTRUCTION

Elevation of as-built lowest floor (including basement) of structure: Source

Complete or Attach the Following if Applicable to this Project:

I Describe flood-proofing methods (e.g.. elevated on compacted fill; flood proofing using bulkheads, sealers; elevated on poles
or columns or concrete walls):

2. If development 1s a mobile home, refer to section S01(A) of Ordinance #17 for anchoring requirements. Deseribe anchoring
zchniques: i
technique N/A
3. A description of the extent to which any water course will be altered or relocated;

4. Based on the (100-year) flood elevation data for development or subdivision greater than S0 lots or § acres, whichever is less.

LA

Attach all relevant engineering data and certificates.

TO BE COMPLETED BY FLOODPLAIN ADMINISTRATOR

/ APPROVED. | have reviewed the plans and materials submitted in support of the proposed development and find them
in compliance with applicable Floodplain Management standards.,

DENIED. The proposed development is not in conformance with applicable Floodplain Management S tandards.

COMMENTS: A77Vet  Fat.  coqumn’ AdCemenT  ONCY = nO gt Dovver ommons

FERALTTED
TSerd THO NI SSare, CFmm W Sogt ity
Floodplain Administrator or Designee I Date

Pennington County Planning Department - 130 Kansas City Street, Suite 200 - Rapid City, South Dakota 57701 - 605-394-2186
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My name is Steve Myers. 

 I was on the Green Valley Sanitary District board for most of 2023. I have written this Commission several times about problems with the Green Valley Sanitary District Board. 

The board acted in their own interests, ignoring the wishes of the residents that were completely evident at the September 27, 2024, Special Meeting and again at the May 29, 2024, Special Hearing, where a raise of hands vote was taken. The vote was overwhelming ‘no’ for this sewer project at both meetings.

The GVSD board put us in debt over $800,000.

When the project estimate somehow went from 9.4 million to 19.6 million, they bailed on September 10, 2025. 

These are the resignations of the entire Green Valley Sanitation District Board.

I have brought you all the paperwork that was dumped on a desk by two of the resigned board members. Val Lewton kept everything that she had, including the 2 checkbooks.



Steve Myers                                        9/15/2025

5648 Greenwood Lane

march18th@rap.midco.net

605-484-1424
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instrument(s). Both your bond and legal counsel must comply with these instructions when
closing the Agency loan/grant.

18. System Users — This letter of conditions is based upon your indication at application that
there will be at least 284 residential users, 0 non-residential users, and 0 bulk / wholesale users
on the existing and/or proposed system when construction is completed.

Before the Agency can agree to the project being advertised for construction bids, you must
certify that the number of users indicated at application are currently using the system or signed
up to use the system once it is operational.

If the actual number of existing and/or proposed users that have signed up for service is less
than the number indicated at the time of application, you must provide the Agency with a written
plan on how you will obtain the necessary revenue to adequately cash flow the expected
operation, maintenance, debt service, and reserve requirements of the proposed project (e.g.,
increase user rates, sign up an adequate number of other users, reduce project scope, etc.).
Similar action is required if there is cause to modify the anticipated flows or volumes presented
following approval.

b. Sewer User Agreements — Users will be required to execute a Sewer Users
Agreement prior to advertising for construction bids. The amount of cash contributions
required will be set by you and concurred with by the Agency. Contributions should be
an amount high enough to indicate sincere interest on the part of the potential user, but
not so high as to preclude service to low-income families, and must have a deadline for
the contribution to be used or forfeited. RUS Bulletin 1780-9, “Water Users Agreement,”
or similar agreement may be used.

19. Construction Account — A separate construction account is not required for project funds.
However, the recipient must be able to separately identify, report and account for all Federal
funds, including the receipt, obligation and expenditure of funds, in accordance with 2 CFR
200.305. These funds must be deposited in a bank with Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation
(FDIC) insurance coverage. If the balances at the financial institution where federal funds will
be deposited exceeds the FDIC insurance coverage, the excess amount must be collaterally
secured up to 100 percent of the highest amount of funds expected to be deposited in the
account at any one time, per the Department of Treasury regulations and requirements.

20. Interim Financing — The Agency’s policy is to utilize interim financing for all loans
exceeding $500,000. Prepayment penalties on interim financing are not allowed. Borrowers are
required to seek interim financing initially from private or cooperative lenders if funds can be
borrowed at reasonable interest rates on an interim basis from those sources for the
construction period. The fact that a commercial lender’s rates are higher than current Agency
interest rates does not necessarily mean that the commercial rate is not reasonable.

21. Proposed Operating Budget — You must establish and/or maintain a rate schedule that
provides adequate income to meet the minimum requirements for operation and maintenance







Grant Documents. This is something that Katie Hammer, Rural Development, has told
me (I have it in an email) that will be enforced. | reminded the GVSD board of this
document several months ago. In the meetings that followed, | was told, ‘our attorney
says that we don’t have to do this’. At another meeting Scott stated that, ‘It’s not in our
Bylaws, so we don’t have to do it’.

You can read my thoughts and see the documents.

Please contact me if you have any questions.

Thank you,

Steve Myers

605-484-1424



Commissioners,
More must know information.

On December 13, 2021, Scott Mohr purchased 5846 Greenwood Lane. That property
includes 7 lots. Allin zone AE. Only 1 has an existing home on it.

In August of 2023 the GVSD board began talks about a pressurized sewer system, at the
suggestion of GVSD resident Scott Mohr.

On November 8, 2023, Scott Morh accepted the position of Member at Large on the Green
Valley Sanitary District (GVSD) board.

At the December 13, 2023, meeting Scott Mohr accepted the position of Vice President on
the GVSD board.

Scott Mohr has a Flood Plain Development Permit # COFDP24-0006. The permitis for
“concrete columns only”. Dated 2/19/2024.

The permit engineer is Interstate Engineering.
The engineer gives the Existing Ground Elevation as 3031.2 - 3032.4.

There are three lots between Scott’s property and mine. Scottis to the south. My Fisk
Engineering survey has my highest point at 3032. That ground saw no water in both 2015
and 2019, when | saw over 2’ of water on 5846 Greenwood Lane. My neighbor directly to the
south, with one property between her and Scott’ farther to the south, has an elevation on
the southern end of her property of 3028.6.

| know that Scott can not get a permit for a septic tank and drain field on those 7 lots.
Pressurized sewer is his only option.

I’m wondering—Is the engineering report falsified? Is there a conflict of interest when Scott
uses the same engineering company as GVSD? Most importantly, Scott kept pushing for
this pressurized sewer when the vast majority didn’t want or need it. Was this because the
only way for him to develop those 7 lots is with a pressurized sewer system?

Steve Myers 9-17-2025









My name is Steve Myers.

I was on the Green Valley Sanitary District board for most of 2023. | have written this
Commission several times about problems with the Green Valley Sanitary District Board.

The board acted in their own interests, ignoring the wishes of the residents that were
completely evident at the September 27, 2024, Special Meeting and again at the May 29,
2024, Special Hearing, where a raise of hands vote was taken. The vote was overwhelming
‘no’ for this sewer project at both meetings.

The GVSD board put us in debt over $800,000.

When the project estimate somehow went from 9.4 million to 19.6 million, they bailed on
September 10, 2025.

These are the resignations of the entire Green Valley Sanitation District Board.

I have brought you all the paperwork that was dumped on a desk by two of the resigned
board members. Val Lewton kept everything that she had, including the 2 checkbooks.

Steve Myers 9/15/2025
5648 Greenwood Lane
march18th@rap.midco.net

605-484-1424
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